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1. Name

historic  The Industrjal Buildirg

and/or common

2. Location

street & number

501 E. Preston Street

— not for publication

clty, town Baltimore —— vicinity of congressional district Seventh
state Maryland code 24 county Baltimore City code 510
3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

— district — public — occupied —— agriculture — museum

X _ building(s) _X_ private —X_ unoccupied — commercial — park
— structure — both — work in progress — sducational — private residence
— slte Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment — religious
— object — In process X yes: restricted — government — sclentific

— being considered — yes: unrestricted — industrial — transportation
—no - — military X other: VACANT

4. Owner of Property |
name Dundalk Holding Company
city, town Baltimore —__ vicinity of state Maryland 21208

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.

Baltimore City Courthouse

street & number Room 601

SRy o _Baltimorg

Maryland 21202

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

itle has this property been determined elegible? __yes __no
date —foderal ___state __county _ local
depository for survey records

city, town state



. 7. De=scription B-jozy

Condition . Check one Check one

— excellent — deteriorated __ unaltered —X_ original site

—X— good — fuins —¥— altered — moved  date

— fair —— unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known] physical appearance . e

The Industrial Building is a large seven-story industrial-style structure. 1
features an *t' plan, reinforced-concrete and steel-frame construction, and large
pivoted-s2zsh windows. The front facade is five bays wide, while the 244-foot Brentwood
Avenue (west) facade has twelve bays. The building is located in a primarily residential
area with some mixed industrial uses. It is highly visible, rising above the surrounding

two and three-story rowhousing.

The building's front (north) facade is characterized by a symmetrical window
arrangement anc¢ a large two-story, round-arched entranceway. The entrance arch has a
pronounced keystone and geometric neo-classical ornamentation. Seven stone steps with
a simple iron railing leac to two sets of wood and glass double doors each with a three-
light transom. A large tripartite semicircular multi-paned window fills the arch above
the entance doors. Above the arch, the words "INDUSTRIAL BUILDING" are carved in stone.

The first level of the front facade is decorated with rusticated stone walls. The
basement windows are set in light wells protected by iron railings. The first level
windows have been infilled with concrete. This facade is divided into a three-bay
entrance section and two narrower one-bay end sections by large pilasters extendirg from
the second to the seventh level. The end section windows are smaller and square. The
roof line of the front facade is defined by & cornice and parapet wall with battlements
on the entrance section. The roof detail of the end sections features incised diamend
nrnameritation anZ perapets rising above the rocfline of the entrance section.

The west facade on brick-paved Brentwood Avenue has two loading docks. The west
end section of the front facade wraps arounc to the Breniwocd Avenue sice. It is one bay
wide and decorated with smaller windows, rusticated stone on the first level, and & decorative
parapet. Except for small projecting roofs protecting the loading docks, this facade is
jdentical in style to the upper floors of the entrance section of the front facade. The
building originally was seven bzys ceep with one loading dock, but a wing was added in
%914 matching the earlier building. A necn sign once rose above the roof on the west
acade. :

The building's east facade, visible from Greenmount Avenue, features two three-sided
light courts. This facade has no ornamentation, except for the east end section of the
front facade, which wraps around to the northernmost bay of the east side. Many of the
first-level windows have been bricked ir; fenestration in the 1ight courts consists cf
smaller windows. The southernmost block and light court were added in 1914 and are
identical %o the 1912 section.

The rear of the building is ornamented. It is seven bays wide and rises above the
three-story rowhouses on Biddle Street. Elevator penthouses on the roof of the building
are visible from & distance. Roof tanks originally insialled have been removed. Insice,
the floor areas are interrupted only by the reinforced concrete columns on all but the
first floor ard basement, providing space for a variety of industrial uses, and two utility
shafts, each housing two freight elevators, two passenger elevators, two sets of siairs,
and men's and women's lavatories. The working spaces are equipped with a sprinkler system
“1d large decorative radiators. The extensive window area provids & generous amount of
.atural 1ight. The floors are concrete and are slightly pitched for drainage. The pitch
is not noticeable, yet is provides ample protection from flooding by the sprinkler system.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1.
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DESCRIPTION, continued

The steel floor beams are concrete sheathed but were designed to permit attachment of
hangers for 1ine shafting or inverted motors for driving machinery.

The first floor of the building has been slightly altered. The open areas
have been subdivided for a cafeteria and a variety of commercial uses. Two freight halls
along the loading docks on Brentwood Avenue are located next to the first floor elevator
This floor is bisected by a hallway leading from the entrance doors to the elevators,
stairs, and first floor industrial areas. A manager's office for the building originally
was located between the first set of elevators and the northernmost 1ight court.
Industrial space was provided in the building's basement, which also houses the
boiler room.



Period Areas of Significance—Check and justity below
—— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric —_ community planning __ landscape architecture____ religion
— 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —— tonservation — law — science
v 1500-1598 ___ agriculture —— economics — literature — sculpture
— 1600-1699 _X__ architecture —— education —— military —— social/
—1700-1789 ___art — engineering — Mmusic humap‘lurhn -
1800-1899 _ commerce —— exploration/settiement __ phliosophy T o
I 1900~ % communications X industry — politics/government __ trlnqufuﬂon
= e — Invention — other (specity)
Specific dates 1912 and 1914 Builder/Architect Theodore W. Pietsch, architect;

P.0. Kielholtz, engineer

Statement of Significance (in one piragraph)

SIGNIFICANCE

The Industrial Building is one of a trend of such structures built in American cities
in the early 20th century. For Baltimore, and the other cities as well, it was an
innovative effort to attract small industries to the downtown. It was successful as such
until the 1960s. The building is again planned for an innovative use in its conversion
to elderly housing, which it is hoped will encourage the revitalization of the neighborhood.

Architecturally the building stems from the commercial style and reflects directly
its industrial use in the interior open space, electrical system, and pivoted-sash
windows. It was designed by Baltimore architect Theodore W. Pietsch.

HISTORY

The Induétr1a1 Building represents an innovative early 20th century attempt by
Baltimore businessmen to encourage industrial development. The project was organized
by the Merchants & Manufacturers Association. As stated in a 1912 Baltimore Magazine
article:

The sole purpose of the building was to encourage manufacturers.
It's owners accomplished this by providing in the building every
factory requirement and made these available to the small manufacturer
without capital expenditure. The building was designed to put the small
manufacturer on a basis on which he could successfully compete with
established industries. It gave him low insurance rates, cheap power,
efficient elevator service, central transportation systems, etc.

The building marked a new point in industrial development in Baltimore. The
enterprise was launched not by a single manufacturer, but a group of leading businessmen
who formed a company and sold $300,000 worth of stock for the construction of the Industrial
Building. One hundred eighty-eightBaltimore citizens bought stock in the facility. The
majority of the shares were purchased by the Consolidated Gas, Electric Light and Power Co.
The Industrial Building Company was formed to operate and maintain the facilities and
rent space.

The Preston Street site was selected because of its proximity to the freight yards
of the B & 0, Pennsylvania, and Western Maryland railroads; its location relative to a
proposed Jones Falls highway; and the nearness to a working class residential neighborhood.

The site was large and free from fire hazards. It formerly was the site of a streetcar
powerhouse and depot.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2.
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SIGNIFICANCE, continued

The building was designed by Theodore Wells Pietsch, architect, and P. 0.
Kielholtz, engineer. Its design was influenced by similar projects in other American
cities visited by representatives of the Merchants & Manufacturers Association.
These buildings include: the Canton Buildings, Cleveland; Bush Terminal, Brooklyn;
Industrial Building, St. Paul; and the Century Building, Indianapolis. Theodore
Pietsch designed many important Baltimore buildings. A graduate of M.I.T. and the
Ecole des Beaux Arts in Paris, he collaborated with Otto Simmonson to design the
Paca-Pratt Building (1904), Eastern High School (1904) on Broadway and North Avenue,
and the old Maryland Institute and surrounding marketplace buildings, including
the Fish Market (1907). He later designed the Zion Church Parish House and Tower
(1912) and Saints Phillip and James Church (1928) at Charles and 29th streets.
Kielholtz was a Baltimore-born engineer and graduate of Johns Hopkins University.

He formerly was an engineer with the Electric, Light, Power, and Street Railway
Corporation. The builder for the 1912 section was Henry Smith & Sons. John Waters
constructed the 1914 addition.

The building was designed with a "U" plan with room for the addition that was
completed in 1914. The exterior derives from the commercial style of architecture
stressing great height, straight fronts, 1ittle ornamentation and large rectangular
windows. Its interior is of significance because of its large, flexible spaces
intended for industrial use. The large floor areas -- 244 feet long and from 117
to 150 feet wide -- could be subdivided for small industries or used by a single
larger industry. The building was thoroughly modern, with fire protection, abundant
light, elevator service, steam heat from the central city plant, and sanitary
arrangements for its tenants. Electricity was sold at wholesale rates one-third the
normal rate for small manufacturers. Ceilings were provided with outlets for
ready attachment of machinery. Over 55 percent of the wall surface was glass. The
light courts provided considerable 1ight and ventilation. Fire protection measures
included absence of combustible materials, stairways located in self-contained,
fire-proof towers, double fire-proof doors at all entrances, and a sprinkler system
for the entire building. Centrally located freight and passenger elevators were
accessable to all industrial areas. A freight hall run by employees of the Industrial
building reduced shipping costs to tenants, and sanitary arrangements for both men
and women were provided on all floors. :

The Industrial Building proved an immediate success; the total rentable area
of the 1912 section was occupied by August 1, 1913. Space was rented to a diverse
group of industries, many new to Baltimore. Amorg the early tenants of the building
were firms producing gun carriages, women's clothing, straw hats, printing machines,
and underclothing. Some of the better known firms were the Lord Baltimore Press,
Sanitary Laundry Co., J. Schoeneman Co., and Crippen & Reid. The Industrial Building

CEC PANTTMIIATIAN CUFET 44
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SIGNIFICANCE, continued

operated the plant until 1961. In recent times the building has faced harse competition
from the suburbs and modern industrial parks. Today this large building stands
vacant in the inner-city neighborhood known as Johnson Square.

The Industrial Building was purchased by the Dundalk Holding Co. in 1977. Plans
are underway to convert it into housing for the elderly under the Section 8 housing
program. While the plans call for subdividing the interior into 217 units, the
building's exterior appearance will be preserved. It is hoped that this important
Baltimore building, which once brought industrial development to the city, will in
the future act as a catalyst in the revitalization of the Johnson Square community.
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0. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property .7561 acres .
Quadrangle name @a]t‘lmore East Quadrangle Blunsdiarials scale 1:24000 )
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Lot bordered by Preston Street on the north, Brentwood Avenue on the west,
Nursery Lane on the east, and an alley just north of Biddle Avenue on the south.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state ] code county code

state code county code

3 11. Form Prepared By

.ame/title Fred B. Shoken, Planning Assistant

organization Commission for Historic and Architectura'lggﬁsewatmn December 27, 1978

street & number ROOI’H 601, City HaT‘, 100 N- Hol]idayte%hone (301) 396'4866

Baltimore state Maryland 21202

city or town

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

__ national ____ state A_Xﬁ local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certity that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

e I _7 o et
State Historic Preservation Officer signature 2 —,-‘-’Z’,‘ ¢ A 1 7 2-78 - 777_ L

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER - _—

title

For HCRS use only
| hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

date

(o
" ./ Xeeper of the National Register

Attest: date
Chief of Registration

GPO u3zs BT
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The Industrial Building

Statement of Significance

Built in 1912, the Industrial Building at 501 E. Preston
is a fine example of an early "industrial building". These
large structures appeared around the country in the early
years of the twentieth century as a way of attracting indus-
try by offering space on a rental basis to small and mid-size
firms who lacked the capital to finance sites of their own.
Industrial buildings, such as Baltimore's often financed in
large part by utility companies, offered many modern conven-
iences, including electrical lighting, fire prevention sys-
tems, heat, set-ups for_line shaft systems, and building se-
curity, all provided as part of the rental package. Recent-
ly renovated, the large seven story industrial Buiiding Te-

mains one of central Baltimore's most striking landmarks.
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

TBINAME

HISTORIC

The Industrial Building

AND/OR COMMON
"The Beehive!"

PALOCATION

STREET & NUMBER
501 East Preston

CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Baltimore — VICINITY OF
STATE COUNTY
: Maxarlan el
EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC __OCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
X_BLIILDING(S} _)$HIVATE —UNOCCUPIED XCOMMERCIAL __PARK
—STRUCTURE __BOTH X_WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS X _YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED XINDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
_NO __MILITARY __OTHER
Y OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
Leon and Esther Friedman Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER .
CITY. TOWN STATE,, Zlp code
o - ___ VICINITY OF Maryland 21202
EJLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION : _
Liber #:yn0 1993

COURTHOUSE.
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC.

Records Office

STREET & NUMBER

Fayette & Calvert Sts.

CITY, TOWN

Baltimore City Courthouse,

STATE

o RBaltimcxe Maryland 21202
n REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
None
DATE
—FEDERAL __STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR

SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN STATE
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DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
_ﬁexce LLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED ORIGINAL SITE -
__GOOD __RUINS XALTERED _MOVED  DATE 4
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Industrial Building represents an advanced stage of steel
and concrete commercial construction. The structure is composed
of a steel cage of rolled sections covered with concrete for fire
purposes while the exterior curtain wall is made of reinforced,
poured concrete.

The north facade of the seven-story building contains the main
entrance and is the only side that contains any ornamentation. It
is eight bays wide with the end bays framed in projecting pilas-
ters. Two bays in the central section were combined by the remo-
val of a wall section in a recent renovation. A large central sec-
tion contains the large two-story arched entrance decorated with
cast concrete Romanesque motifs. A hallwall runs from the en-
trance back to a central section which holds the elevators and
stair towers and is separated from the working spaces themselves,
making each floor an entity for rental purposes. This central
stair tower is essentially an entity in itself, built of concrete
from foundations to roof.

The building's longitudinal axis runs south from this facade
an entire block. Rather than being a solid mass, however, its —
eastern facade originally had an indentation, giving the whole
a "U"-shaped plan and providing a great deal of well-1lit work-
space. A later addition in the middle of the '"'U'" preserved this
light whicle providing more floor area. The facades of all sides
but the north are plain and severly functional.

Function was the key to the design of the interior as well.
The building was fitted with sprinklers throughout and all floors
were pitched to drains. Ceilings were designed to permit easy in-
stallation of hangers for machinery drive shafts. The original
windows, now replaced, were the industrial casement type to allow
for a maximum of natural light and ventilation.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Bl SIGNIFICANCE
ERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—PREHISTORIC  __ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __ RELIGION

_1400-1499 . __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —_LAW __SCIENCE

__1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
__1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
_1700-1799 __ART ;(emsmssnmc __MusIC __THEATER

__1B00-1899 KCOMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _ PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
;1900- —COMMUNICATIONS X_'lNDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __DTHER [SPECIFY)

__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 191 BUILDER/ARCHITECT 0, YLeilhotlz, T, W. Pietascin

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1912, the Industrial Building at 501 E. Preston
is a fine example of an early "industrial building". These
large structures appeared around the country in the early
years of the twentieth century as a way of attracting indus-
try by offering space on a rental basis to small and mid-size
firms who lacked the capital to finance sites of their own.
Industrial buildings, such as Baltimore's often financed in
large part by utility companies, offered many modern conven-
iences, including electrical lighting, fire prevention sys-
tems, heat, set-ups for line shaft systems, and building se-
curity, all provided as part of the rental package. Recent-
ly renovated, the large seven story Industrial Building re-
mains one of central Baltimore's most striking landmarks.

Historical Significance:

The Industrial Building or "The Bee-hive'" as it came
to be called was formally opened at 501 E. Preston on July
24th, 1912. It was constructed for the purpose of attract-
ing industry to Baltimore, and to furnish small industries
already located in the city with adequate facilities to en-
able them to successfully compete with established indus-
tries. The seven story steel and concrete building was the
work of Mr. P.0. Keilhotlz, engineer and Mr. Theodore Wells
Pietath, architect. Twelve thousand tons of structural
steel covered with fire-proof concrete was used in the build-
ing. Window openings were filled with rolled steel and had
movable openings for ventilation. The building was originally
"W' shaped so that later additions could be added. A novel
feature of the building for its time was a centrally located
hall providing a convenient division of floor space. This
hallway was seperated from the rest of the building by fire-

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY cont'd
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CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
[LJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE ; COUNTY T
[B1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Ann Steele, Pat Norton
ORGANIZATION DATE
Baltimore Industrial Museum January 1981
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
217 N. Charles Street 301-396-1931
CiTY OR TOWN STATE

Baltimore, Md. 21201

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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proof walls. Stairways were similarly constructed so that safe
egress was provided in case of fire. All floors were equipped
with sprinklers fed of a 25,000 gallon elevated tank, in addi-
tion to steam and electric fire pumps. Floors were pitched to
provide drainage through scupper openings yet not noticeably.
The ceilings of all floors were designed to permit the ready
attachment of hangers for shafting or suspending inverted
motors.

Mr. J.E. Aldred, President of the Consolidated Gas Elec-
tric Light and Power Company, and the Pennsylvania Water and
Power Company, suggested the construction of such a building
to a group of gentlemen. A committee from this group then
visited similar buildings then existing in Brooklyn, Cleveland
and Indianopolis to investigate the advisability of erecting
such a building in Baltimore. Funds for the $300,000 building
were raised through the sale of three thousand shares of stock
at $100 a piece. One hundred eighty-eight citizens of Balti-
more purchased shares in addition to those purchased by the
power companies.

Without capital expenditure for land, building, elevator
service, power and heating plant, the manufacturers located in
The Industrial Building were in a position to employ all their
capital for operating and extending their business. Because
capital was invested in liquid assets, The Industrial Building
offered better credit for its manufacturers. In addition, taxes
for land, building and equipment were eliminated under Maryland
law. Due to the fire-proof construction of the building in-
surance rates were low and amounted to sprinkler risk.
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7. OWNER/ADMIN
Leon and Esther M, Friedman
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The Industrial Building (The Beehive)
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17. DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND HISTORY, INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION DATE(S). HISTORICAL DATE(S). PHYSICAL DIMENSIONS,
MATERIALS, EXTANT EQUIPMENT, AND IMPORTANT BUILDERS. ENGINEERS. ETC.

Built in 1912, the Industrial Building at 501 E, Preston is a fine example of an early "industrial building".
These large structures appeared around the country in the early years of the twentieth century as a way of
attracting industry by offering space on a rental basis to small and mid-size firms who lacked the capital to
finance sites of their own, Industrial buildings, such as Baltimore's often financed in large part by utility
companies, offered many modern conveniences, including electrical lighting, fire prevention systems, heat,
set-ups for line shaft systems, and building security, all provided as part of the rental package, Recently
renovated, the large seven story Industrial Building remains one of central Baltimore's most striking landmarks.

(CONT OVER)

18 ORIGINAL USE PRESENT USE ADAPTIVE USE

Manufacturing/Commercial lManufacturing/Comercial
19 REFERENCES—HISTORICAL REFERENCES. PERSONAL CONTACTS. ANDIOR OTHER

Vertical Files, Enoch Pratt Free Library

"The Bee-Hive", Baltimore Magazine, August, 1912, pp. 11-14

(CONT OVER)

20 URBAN AREA 50,000 21 22, PUBLIC ACCESSIBILITY g YES. LIMITED O ¥ES. UNLIMITED 23 EDITOR

POP. OR MORE? gvea Ono -

On~o [J UNKNOWN INDEXER

24 LOCATED IN AN HISTCRIC DISTRICT?

Oves Ono NAME DISTRICT 1D NO |

FHR-8.260 179 HCRS REGION GPO 871981
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B-1024
Industrial Building (The Beehive)

1200 Greenmount Avenue (formerly 501 E. Preston Street)
Block 1154, Lot 001

Baltimore City

Baltimore East Quad.
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